
Marijuana Advisory Committee 
October 23, 2015 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Marijuana	Advisory	Committee	Minutes	
Monday,	November	23,	2015	7:00pm	

Sealing	Cove	Business	Center	
	

Committee	Members:		

Levi	Albertson,	Andrew	Hames,	Joseph	D’Arienzo,		
Dr.	Myron	Fribush,	Pamela	Ash,	Darrell	Windsor,		

Steven	Eisenbeisz,	Bob	Potrzuski	

	

I. CALL	TO	ORDER	
Chair	Albertson	called	the	meeting	to	order	at	approximately	7:05PM.	

	
II.	 ROLL	CALL	

Present:	 	 Levi	 Albertson,	 Joseph	D’Arienzo,	 Andrew	Hames,	 Pamela	 Ash,	 Darrell	Windsor,	
Steven	Eisenbeisz,	Bob	Potrzuski.	
Absent:	Dr.	Myron	Fribush	(excused),	
Staff:	Municipal	Attorney	Robin	Koutchak,	Paralegal	Reuben	Yerkes	
	

III.	 AGENDA	CHANGES:		None	
	
IV.	 APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES:		M	‐	Windsor/	S	–	Potrzuski,	motion	passed	unanimously		
	 	
		V.	 PERSONS	TO	BE	HEARD/CORRESPONDENCE:	
	 Aaron	Bean	stated	that	he	attended	the	last	marijuana	control	board	meeting	and	said	that	

they	will	allow	Sitka	to	develop	its	own	testing	process.		He	also	stated	that	they	will	be	
holding	another	meeting	on	the	first	of	December	to	address	the	requirements	necessary	to	
have	a	license	in	Alaska.	

	
	 City	Attorney	Robin	Koutchak	stated	that	she	met	with	Cynthia	Franklin,	the	Chair	of	the	

State	Marijuana	Advisory	Board,	in	Anchorage	and	noted	that	she	still	had	no	means	by	
which	to	record	any	given	municipal	local	regulatory	authority.		She	stated	that	there	would	
be	a	60‐day	department	of	law	review	that	would	result	in	independent	legal	review	of	the	
proposed	regulations	for	constitutionality.			

	 		 	
VI.		 REPORTS:			

Potrzuski	stated	that	he	also	heard	from	Cynthia	Franklin	regarding	transportation	from	a	
testing	site	to	a	dispensary	as	necessary.		He	stated	that	he	came	away	with	an	
understanding	that	inter‐state	commerce	would	allow	movement	of	marijuana	within	and	
between	states,	as	long	as	it’s	a	legal	amount.	
	
D’Arienzo	stated	that	the	Marijuana	Advisory	Committee’s	proposed	zoning	revisions	
would	be	heard	at	the	December	1	Planning	Commission	meeting.				

	
VII.	 UNFINISHED	BUSINESS:	
	 Permitting	and	Licensing			

Eisenbeisz	stated	that	regarding	on‐site	consumption	his	understanding	was	that	retail	
would	be	separated	from	any	given	consumption	area.		City	Attorney	Koutchak	stated	that	



Marijuana Advisory Committee 
October 23, 2015 

Page 2 of 4 
 

an	individual	can	consume	marijuana	as	long	as	you	are	not	in	a	municipally	controlled	or	
operated	location	or	facility,	public	street	sidewalk	or	alley,	any	public	school	grounds	to	
include	while	in	a	motor	vehicle,	or	any	other	public	or	private	property	where	it	is	posted	
that	consumption	is	prohibited.	

	 		
Eisenbeisz	stated	that	he	is	in	favor	of	venues	designated	for	on‐site	consumption.		He	said	
that	his	primary	concern	otherwise	would	be	consumption	in	public.		He	also	stated	that	if	
consumption	is	allowed	outside	in	a	designated	area,	drifting	odors	drift	could	be	a	
problem.		He	stated	as	an	example	that	a	BBQ	vendor	is	not	required	to	contain	all	of	the	
associated	smell	resulting	from	its	product.		D’Arienzo	stated	that	he	is	also	in	support	of	
on‐site	consumption	being	allowed.			
	 	
City	Attorney	Koutchak	suggested	that	the	Committee	endeavor	to	create	an	ordinance	that	
allows	for	clubs,	so	that	the	attorneys	in	the	department	of	law	know	that	such	a	provision	
has	at	least	some	municipal	support.		Eisenbeisz	stated	that	he	was	in	agreement.	
	
Windsor	stated	that	he	is	also	in	support	of	clubs.		Eisenbeisz	asked	if	the	Committee	would	
allow	outside	as	well	as	inside,	on‐site	consumption.	
			
Chair	Albertson	stated	that	he	felt	this	item	should	be	added	to	the	next	agenda	as	an	item	
to	allow	for	further	public	comment.		Eisenbeisz	agreed.		Windsor	stated	it	is	common	
practice	for	the	Planning	Commission	to	allow	additional	meeting	times	to	give	a	potentially	
controversial	topic	more	opportunity	for	public	comment.	
			

VIII.	 NEW	BUSINESS	
Chair	Albertson	stated	that	one	major	difference	between	marijuana	and	alcohol	
regulation	is	that	it	is	currently	illegal	to	levy	an	excise	tax	on	alcohol.		He	continued	that	if	
it	were	not	for	that	State	imposed	prohibition,	many	municipalities	likely	would	levy	excise	
taxes	on	alcohol.		He	added	that	there	is	no	guarantee	that	the	state	will	give	any	
percentage	of	the	licensing	fees	to	municipalities.	
			
D’Arienzo	stated	that	at	the	moment	he	is	not	in	favor	of	a	local	excise	tax.		He	said	that	he	
would	be	in	favor	of	having	some	place	holder	language	that	would	reserve	the	right	to	
levy	an	excise	tax	in	the	future.		Chair	Albertson	stated	that	his	concern	with	not	having	a	
provision	for	the	levying	of	an	excise	tax	is	that	the	state	could	prohibit	the	imposition	of	
any	additional	excise	taxation	which	would	then	preclude	the	municipality	from	levying	
such	a	tax.		Chair	Albertson	proposed	starting	off	with	a	1%	excise	tax.		Ash	stated	her	
support	for	that	idea.		Albertson	stated	that	he	envisioned	the	excise	tax	be	solely	on	the	
consumer	end.		Eisenbeisz	stated	that	he	would	like	to	have	a	specifically	stated	reason	and	
beneficiary	for	such	an	excise	tax	for	the	Assembly	to	consider.			

	
Break:		8:04	
Start:		8:13	
	 	

Potrzuski	stated	that	he	had	a	constituent	ask	about	a	reduced	rate	for	medical	marijuana.		
Ash	stated	that	a	lot	of	doctors	do	resist	issuing	a	medical	marijuana	prescription.		She	
stated	that	in	Colorado	the	process	of	getting	a	medical	use	prescription	was	seen	as	being	
overly	easy.		As	a	result,	many	doctors	in	Alaska	are	reluctant	to	issue	such	a	prescription.			
	



Marijuana Advisory Committee 
October 23, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Chair	Albertson	reminded	the	Committee	that	at	the	moment	there	was	no	distinction	
between	recreational	and	medical	marijuana.		He	stated	that	the	Assembly	may	choose	to	
waive	any	taxation	of	medical	marijuana,	at	its	discretion.			

	
Chair	Albertson	asked	if	it	would	be	possible	to	levy	an	excise	tax.		City	Chief	Financial	
Officer	Jay	Sweeney	stated	that	all	it	would	need	would	be	an	agreeable	Assembly	unless	
legislation	was	enacted	at	the	State	level	that	would	preclude	the	Assembly	from	being	
able	to	do	that	in	the	future.		He	stated	that	he	believed	that	the	State	intends	to	afford	that	
ability	to	municipalities.		He	stated	that	there	is	a	difference	between	licensure	and	
permitting,	licensure	fees	would	be	split	50/50	but	any	permitting	fees	will	be	retained	
entirely	by	the	State.		This	does	not	include	the	State	$50	per	ounce	tax.			
	
Eisenbeisz	asked	how	the	Finance	department	would	deal	with	the	wholesale	transfer	of	
marijuana.		He	asked	if	the	Finance	department	would	be	in	favor	of	a	wholesale	
exemption,	or	would	the	department	be	looking	to	tax	marijuana	at	every	level	of	
transaction.		Chief	Financial	Officer	Jay	Sweeney	stated	that	sales	tax	is	limited	by	existing	
sales	tax	code.		He	stated	that	the	discussion	has	not	happened	on	an	excise	or	value‐added	
tax.		
		
City	Attorney	Koutchak	asked	what	he	thought	about	a	place	holder	tax,	in	case	the	State	
were	to	come	in	later	an	prohibit	future	excise	taxes.		Chief	Financial	Officer	Jay	Sweeney	
said	that	there	is	good	logic	there,	given	what	has	happened	with	alcohol	in	the	State.	
		

	 City	Attorney	Koutchak	asked	why	tax	marijuana	and	where	would	tax	revenue	go.			
Sweeney	stated	that	if	the	reporting	requirement	is	similar	to	existing	methods,	it	would	
not	require	any	additional	staff.		He	said	that	when	issues	such	as	compilation	of	statistical	
data	is	where	staff	time	increases	noticeably.		He	said	that	all	taxes	are	directed	to	the	
general	fund.		He	said	that	the	Assembly	could	do	anything	it	wants	regarding	designating	
a	beneficiary	of	that	revenue.		
		
Chair	Albertson	cited	the	topic	of	Nome	which	only	allows	product	produced	within	its	
municipality.		He	asked	if	Sitka	could	do	something	similar.		Sweeney	said	that	there	is	
nothing	in	the	City	charter	that	he	is	aware	of	that	would	preclude	something	like	that	
from	being	passed.		
		
Chair	Albertson	asked	based	on	what	Chief	Financial	Officer	Jay	Sweeney	had	seen	at	
conferences	what	other	municipalities	are	doing	with	regard	to	taxation.		Chief	Financial	
Officer	Jay	Sweeney	stated	that	they	are	hugely	varied.		He	said	that	a	fundamental	
challenge	that	most	municipalities	are	dealing	with	is	the	500	foot	buffer	zone	that	
threatens	to	potentially	stop	the	ability	of	a	municipality	to	sell	any	marijuana	products.		
He	stated	that	with	regard	to	clubs,	just	because	a	person	is	charged	admission	to	get	in	
does	not	mean	that	it	is	a	private	venue.		He	said	that	a	major	challenge	is	maintaining	
control	of	the	public	safety	and	health.	
			
Windsor	stated	that	the	underlying	premise	of	the	Committees	work	is	to	treat	marijuana	
as	a	legitimate	business,	and	that	most	other	businesses	don’t	have	to	deal	with	an	excise	
tax.		Eisenbeisz	stated	that	when	he	voted	in	favor	of	the	initiative,	he	did	not	assume	that	
there	would	be	additional	tax	revenue	resulting.		He	said	that	he	is	in	favor	of	a	place	



Marijuana Advisory Committee 
October 23, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 
 

holder	excise	tax.		
			
City	Attorney	Koutchak	stated	that	in	the	case	of	cigarettes	and	alcohol	a	great	deal	of	the	
revenue	resulting	from	taxation	is	used	to	defray	the	social	costs	resulting	from	substance	
abuse.		She	added	that	the	municipality	does	need	money,	and	that	the	method	of	getting	it	
on	the	backs	of	tourists	is	legitimate.			

	 	
IX.	 PERSONS	TO	BE	HEARD	

Eric	Van	Veen	stated	that	tourists	are	not	going	to	come	to	Sitka	to	get	pot,	but	they	are	
likely	to	come	off	the	ship	to	try	it.		He	stated	that	he	did	not	support	additional	taxation	as	
it	will	be	difficult	for	a	marijuana	business	to	get	started.		He	added	that	the	electricity	costs	
alone	will	likely	be	approximately	$60,000	per	year	for	a	25‐light	grow	operation.	
	
Jay	Stelzenmuller	stated	that	the	higher	the	price	of	tobacco,	the	fewer	kids	get	addicted	to	
it.		He	stated	that	was	a	benefit	of	an	excise	tax.		He	added	that	tourists	already	come	to	
Sitka	to	buy	jewelry	and	furs	from	New	York,	thus	they	may	well	also	buy	local	marijuana.			
	
Jeff	Moebus	stated	that	legalization	completely	dropped	the	price	out	on	the	marijuana	
black	market.		He	said	that	by	making	legal	marijuana	just	as	expensive	as	black	market	
marijuana	you	push	consumers	back	into	that	market.	

	
X.	 ADJOURNMENT	

	

A. 		Agenda	items	for	next	meeting.			
a. Taxation	and	finance	continued.			
b. Discussion	on	marijuana	on‐site	consumption,	on	commercial/retail	premises.		

B. 		Set	next	meeting	date.	
Monday	November	30	at	7PM			

	
M	 –	Windsor/S	 ‐	 Eisenbeisz	moved	 to	 adjourn	 at	 approximately	 9:11pm.	 	Motion	
carried	unanimously.	

	
Attest:	

Reuben	Yerkes,	Paralegal	
 


